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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.

          3  My name is Jim Gennaro, Chairman on the Committee on

          4  Environmental Protection, and we are here to talk,

          5  once again, about Intro. No. 47, now Intro. 47-A.

          6                 We heard this bill previously; we

          7  made some changes to it. Perhaps we are a little

          8  further down the road towards having a bill that,

          9  you know, makes that balance between the public's

         10  interest in knowing certain information, and doing

         11  whatever we can to protect public safety and

         12  recognizing the security concerns that we all have

         13  to be very interested in, in a post- 9/11 world.

         14  So, perhaps, we have taken one step further down the

         15  road.

         16                 We have representatives of the DEP,

         17  and the Police Department, and the State, and other

         18  people who will testify and bring some important

         19  evaluative to what we do here today.  We are

         20  grateful for you all being here, and for your

         21  testimony.

         22                 We are joined by the Counsel to the

         23  Committee, Donna De Costanzo, to my right.  And to

         24  my left, my new Chief- of- Staff, Chris Boyd, whom

         25  many of you who have worked on environmental issues
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          2  may know, worked previously for the Brooklyn Borough

          3  President's Office on those issues.  We have Jeff

          4  Heardman (phonetic) here, and I would like to thank

          5  him for his good efforts on what we have been able

          6  to accomplish thus far on Intro. 47.  But it looks

          7  like we have a little more work to do, and I look

          8  forward to starting that process today, and I thank

          9  you all for being here.

         10                 And without further ado, we will call

         11  our first witness, Mary Ellen Kris of the Department

         12  of Environmental Conservation.  Thank you, Mary

         13  Ellen for being here, and if you have anyone else

         14  that you would like to bring to the witness table

         15  with you, that would be great, the more the merrier.

         16                 I just would like to take this

         17  opportunity, this will be your first time before the

         18  Committee in the new session, and I will take this

         19  opportunity to gush a little bit about the, you

         20  know, the kind of working relationship that we have

         21  had in the past, that I know we will continue.  I am

         22  happy that you are in the role that you have, and

         23  all the good service that you have done for the

         24  environment over recent years.  We really appreciate

         25  that, and we appreciate you for being before the
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          2  Committee today.

          3                 We have a slightly new protocol since

          4  you were last here, we swear in all the witnesses,

          5  but it is sort of a nice oath; it is a friendly

          6  oath.  And so, what I will do is I will Donna to

          7  give the oath.  I guess this will be both for you

          8  and your partner in government, there.

          9                 And without further ado, we will have

         10  Donna do the oath, and then I would like you to

         11  identify yourself for the record, and identify your

         12  associate, and proceed with your testimony.

         13                 Donna, you are on.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please, raise your

         15  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         16  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         17  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         18                 MS. KRIS:  I do.

         19                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         21  much, you may consider yourself under oath.  Please,

         22  identify yourself, for the record.

         23                 When the light is off, the mic is on.

         24                 MS. KRIS:  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, that is a
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          2  kind of counter intuitive thing, sorry about that.

          3                 MS. KRIS:  Thank you, Chairman

          4  Gennaro.  My name is Mary Ellen Kris.  I am the

          5  Director of the New York City Regional Office of the

          6  New York State Department of Environmental

          7  Conservation.  With me today, is Sandra Martincott

          8  (phonetic). Sandra is in our Remediation Program in

          9  the Long Island City Office of DEC, where I work.

         10  And for a number of years before assuming that

         11  position, she was in charge of our Petroleum Bulk

         12  Storage, Chemical Bulk Storage Unit, so she has a

         13  lot of experience with our Spills Databases, and

         14  hopefully, will bail me out today.

         15                 Before I read the testimony that I

         16  brought, I would just like to make a couple of

         17  preliminary remarks.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do we have

         19  copies of that testimony, do we have copies?

         20                 MS. KRIS:  Yes, I just handed an

         21  envelope to the Clerk.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I have it

         23  right here, sorry about that.

         24                 MS. KRIS:  Okay.  We appreciate the

         25  opportunity to testify; we appreciate the
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          2  Committee's interest in this subject area, and all

          3  of the enthusiasm, and hard work, and critical

          4  thinking that the new Committee is bringing to the

          5  various environmental issues that confront the City.

          6    And I very much appreciate the relationship we

          7  have with the Committee, and your kind words.

          8                 We are here today because we were

          9  invited, but, also, we are, obviously, very

         10  generally supportive of the notion of information

         11  retrieval systems that will enable all of us to do

         12  our jobs better, more efficiently, and quicker.  I

         13  cannot say that we have had a lot of time to think

         14  hard about the proposed legislation, nor have we

         15  really had enough of an opportunity to talk to our

         16  colleagues in City government about what the

         17  implications of the proposed legislation would be

         18  for their systems, budget, and what not.  So, in

         19  fact, the testimony that I am about to read was

         20  prepared without having spoken to DEP or any of the

         21  other agencies about what databases they currently

         22  have and how effective they are.  So, it may be that

         23  there is a lot more thought and talking to go on

         24  after today, and of course, that is one of the

         25  values of these hearings; it is to provoke those
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          2  kinds of discussions.

          3                 So with that, Chairman Gennaro and

          4  Committee on Environmental Protection, on behalf of

          5  Commissioner Crotty of the New York State Department

          6  of Environmental Conservation, I would like to thank

          7  you for the opportunity to testify today, on the

          8  important issue of computerizing information

          9  pertaining to the storage and handling of hazardous

         10  substances in New York City.

         11                 Before the September 11th terrorist

         12  attacks, our Department, DEC, recognized the need to

         13  integrate all of its databases to provide greater

         14  assurance that we would use our resources wisely,

         15  and we are continuing with that long- term

         16  initiative.  The need to rapidly identify sites

         17  where hazardous materials are stored, however,

         18  became all the more important in the aftermath of

         19  September 11th terrorist attacks.  In particular,

         20  one of the outcomes of September 11th has been to

         21  heighten our Department's attention to the storage,

         22  handling, and discharge of hazardous substances and

         23  the security issues associated with broad public

         24  access to that information.

         25                 Let me briefly describe for you what
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          2  the Department defines as a hazardous substance.

          3  And by the way, definitions are obviously critical

          4  in this, as in every environmental area.  And before

          5  I read this, I will tell you that unlike federal

          6  law, in state law hazardous substances, under

          7  current state law, does not incorporate hazardous

          8  waste, and vice- a- versa.  So, you may, I do not

          9  know whether you intend to capture the federal

         10  definition of hazardous substance, which is broader.

         11    But the State's definition of hazardous substance,

         12  which excludes hazardous waste, is as follows, and

         13  it is found in Part 597, of our Chemical Bulk's

         14  Storage Regulations, which I brought some copies of

         15  for the Committee.

         16                 It is substances which can cause

         17  physical injury or illness to humans when improperly

         18  treated, stored, transported, disposed of, or

         19  otherwise managed.

         20                 Pose a present or potential hazard to

         21  the environment when improperly treated, stored,

         22  transported, disposed of, or otherwise managed.

         23                 Present a demonstrated threat to

         24  biological life cycles when released into the

         25  environment.
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          2                 Are banned, prohibited, or limited

          3  pursuant to the federal Toxic Substance Control Act.

          4                 Are pesticides whose use or

          5  possession is prohibited pursuant to the federal

          6  Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act.

          7                 Or are defined as a hazardous

          8  substance under the Comprehensive Environmental

          9  Response Compensation Liability Act.

         10                 And as I say, that these definitions

         11  vary very widely among state, federal and local

         12  laws.

         13                 The hazardous substances, which we

         14  regulate generally, are those stored at Petroleum

         15  Bulk Storage Facilities (PBS), Chemical Bulk Storage

         16  Facilities (CBS), and Major Oil Storage Facilities

         17  (MOSF).  PBS Facilities, under our regulations, are

         18  those that include storage tanks with the capacity

         19  to store more than 1,100 gallons of petroleum.  And

         20  those kind of storage facilities could be above

         21  ground or below ground, or a combination of the two.

         22    CBS Facilities are containers that store more than

         23  185 gallons above ground, or any amount below

         24  ground, which is a change, by the way, to the

         25  written testimony, or any amount underground of any

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  chemical substances listed in Part 597. Finally, an

          3  MOSF, or a major on shore, a Major Oil Storage

          4  Facility, would include things like a refinery, or

          5  oil transfer terminals that have a combined above

          6  and below ground capacity of in excess of 400,000

          7  gallons.

          8                 Among the Department's many

          9  responsibilities, we maintain databases, which

         10  catalog information on all the reports that we

         11  receive of suspected releases of hazardous

         12  substances. Across the State, our Oil Spill and

         13  Hazardous Substances Hotline annually logs

         14  approximately between 15 to 17 thousand reports of

         15  suspected releases of hazardous substances,

         16  including oil.  In the last fiscal year, from April

         17  2001 through end of March 2002, about 25 percent of

         18  those reported spill events were right here in New

         19  York City.

         20                 We also maintain data collected in

         21  our registration and licensing of hazardous

         22  substance storage facilities under our CBS, PBS, and

         23  MOSF programs.  DEC regulates nearly 40,000

         24  facilities across the State under these programs,

         25  about two- thirds of which are in New York City.  Of
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          2  these regulated facilities in New York City,

          3  approximately 250 are Chemical Bulk Storage

          4  Facilities, about 40 are Major Oil Storage

          5  Facilities, and the majority, about 25,500, are

          6  Petroleum Bulk Storage Facilities.

          7                 Along with the City of New York, we

          8  also receive data mandated by the federal Superfund

          9  Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) Title 3 on

         10  hazardous material storage data, which is very

         11  important and useful in responding to emergencies.

         12  That information is sent to us, by April 1st of

         13  every year, and its purpose, of course, is so that

         14  emergency planners and responders can plan how to

         15  best to prevent an emergency, or react to an

         16  emergency.  And I believe the information is also

         17  filed with the City.

         18                 That information is currently

         19  available only in paper form at State DEC, which,

         20  obviously, makes it difficult to access quickly and

         21  efficiently in an emergency situation of great

         22  proportions, such as 9/11.  Recognizing the swift

         23  retrieval of accurate information on hazardous

         24  substances is important to the protection of public

         25  health, we have begun a plan to computerize the
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          2  annual SARA Title 3 filings.  Our plan would extend

          3  the accessibility of this data to other state and

          4  local officials.

          5                 I would like to note that our

          6  intention to computerize the SARA information is

          7  part of a larger initiative in which the Department

          8  is undertaking to link together all of our many

          9  databases.  The intent of this overarching program

         10  is to help the Department to ensure the protection

         11  of public health and environment across New York

         12  State.  We have placed a priority on computerizing

         13  the databases for hazardous substances, to readily

         14  access this information in a useable form and in a

         15  timely manner. We have applied to the US Department

         16  of Environmental Protection Agency, USEPA, for a

         17  grant to help us do the systems development work

         18  necessary for the SARA Title 3 database.

         19                 Knowing that this process will take

         20  time, we have already taken steps to make our data

         21  on hazardous substances more accessible within our

         22  own agency, and to other governmental officials and

         23  the public.  Because of concerns about the public

         24  availability of sensitive information, we are

         25  working through these issues with due diligence to
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          2  the requirements of the State's Freedom of

          3  Information Law (FOIL).  In this regard, I would

          4  like to note that Governor Pataki is recommending

          5  legislation, S.6806, to expand the public safety

          6  exemption in FOIL, to protect from disclosure

          7  government records, which are obtained or compiled

          8  in monitoring, investigating, or preparing for

          9  suspected or potential terrorist activity.

         10                 Recognizing the importance of

         11  computerized data on hazardous substances, the

         12  Department supports the goal of City Council

         13  proposal 47- A.  Improved management and access to

         14  the environmental and public safety data should

         15  provide many benefits to governmental officials who

         16  rely on it to carry out their missions, and to the

         17  public who need to know the presence of hazardous

         18  materials.  We would caution, however, that this

         19  process will likely take longer than 90 days

         20  specified in the legislation. And if an initiative

         21  like this is to go forward, to expand upon or

         22  improve whatever the databases the City already has,

         23  we would encourage the City Council to provide the

         24  time and resources necessary to undertake such an

         25  important health and safety function.  The
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          2  Department also encourages the City to work with us,

          3  with DEC, on any databases that you may develop, or

          4  expand upon, or improve upon.  Ensuring that the

          5  State and City have access to the same health and

          6  safety information is, obviously, important to all

          7  of us.

          8                 I think I may have skipped over one

          9  important - - One of the things that we were asked

         10  to do in the aftermath of 9/11 was to pull together

         11  the information on the SARA Title 3 filings, for all

         12  of the facilities south of Canal Street, and it

         13  really was a massive undertaking.  I do not think I

         14  covered that in the testimony.  It took a lot of

         15  labor, a lot of manual labor, and it resulted in

         16  about six inches of material in a binder, that

         17  obviously, is not as user- friendly as electronic

         18  access.  So, that is an example of the sort of

         19  commitment we have, and the limitations of using a

         20  manual system.

         21                 On behalf of Commissioner Crotty, I

         22  want to thank you, again, for allowing the

         23  Department the opportunity to express our views.  I

         24  would be happy to answer any questions, and wanted

         25  to add just two things.  I have with me our hotline
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          2  number stickers, if you want them.  A couple of sets

          3  of the PBS and CBS regulations. And I wanted to

          4  mention that the four databases that I talked about

          5  in our testimony, the Spills Hotline, and whatever

          6  databases we have on PBS, CBS, and MOSF, are

          7  available in CD- Rom form.  I do not have them with

          8  me today, but we could make those available to the

          9  Council.  And we are also interested and willing to

         10  make available to the Council and to any of the City

         11  agencies involved in this effort, electronically our

         12  systems, and to work with the City agencies and the

         13  Council on any improvements you seek to make,

         14  because we are trying to do the same thing, and we

         15  think we can learn from each other.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         17  Please, also, give our best to Commissioner Crotty.

         18  She is a friend for a long time, and who has also

         19  toiled in the vineyard for many years on behalf of

         20  environment, and please, send her my best.

         21                 MS. KRIS:  I will.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, yes, thank

         23  you, also, for these materials.  I love stickers,

         24  you know, stickers are great.           Thank you

         25  for your thoughtful testimony, and for your
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          2  commitment to this critical issue.  And I think what

          3  you just indicated about what it took for your

          4  agency to compile information, you know, about a

          5  relatively small geographic area, pulling that

          6  altogether and the effort that it took, I think,

          7  underscores pretty much why we are all here today,

          8  to see if we can make some of this information

          9  better able to be used.  Information is power, but

         10  if you do not have it at your disposal, it is not

         11  that powerful.

         12                 Let me just ask you a few brief

         13  questions, if I could.  With regard to the spills

         14  that DEC monitors any time anyone encounters a free

         15  product in the ground, their first call should be to

         16  your agency to report it.  Then your agency has the

         17  obligation to investigate, and do whatever it does

         18  with regard to the ultimate cleanup of that spill.

         19  And your agency would be the regulator, right, to

         20  make sure that the spill is cleaned up

         21  appropriately.  I mean, we have been through this

         22  when we had the underground storage tank hearings

         23  about all the, when the City was seeking to comply

         24  with the EPA 1998 deadline of getting all the tanks

         25  out of the ground.  And as they did that through the
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          2  nineties, they were encountering a lot of leaky

          3  tanks and free product, and so on.  I think all of

          4  the leaks that the City discovered became the basis

          5  of a consenter between the City and the State, and I

          6  guess that worked, and continues until all those

          7  spills are ultimately cleaned up.

          8                 And, of course, you are not only the

          9  regulator for things that the City would spill into

         10  the ground, but things that essentially, everybody

         11  would spill into the ground.  That is, you know, the

         12  role of your agency, as I understand it; correct?

         13                 MS. KRIS:  We are one of the

         14  agencies.  Oftentimes there are multiple

         15  jurisdiction, depending on the type of substance and

         16  where the impacts are.  For example, an oil spill

         17  onto the water, the Coast Guard is typically the

         18  lead.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, sure.

         20                 MS. KRIS:  For an event where a fire,

         21  the Fire Department would be the lead.  Sometimes

         22  DEP is the lead.  We often all converge at the same

         23  site,  - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         25                 MS. KRIS: - -  and there is an
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          2  understanding as to who takes the lead for which

          3  types of incidents.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, and I

          5  guess, certainly, if it was, because if there is, I

          6  guess, you know, different kinds of releases,

          7  certainly, you can have a release where it is some

          8  kind of air emission that goes into the air.  It

          9  could be a situation where a tanker truck spills

         10  over and a bunch of gasoline goes on, like the

         11  surface, so- to- speak, maybe a little bit into the

         12  sewer system.  And then, of course, the City would

         13  respond and do what they had to do to make sure the

         14  sewers are cleaned out, or who knows, and the stuff

         15  is cleaned up off the roadway.

         16                 But when we are talking about, I

         17  guess, then there are the kind of spills that go,

         18  you know, go into the ground, you know, leaky

         19  storage tanks, or whatever it is, people do some

         20  kind of excavation, and lo and behold, they find

         21  free product or whatever.  That really would be,

         22  that is you folks.

         23                 MS. KRIS:  In most cases, that is

         24  going to be DEC.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, that is
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          2  you.  And so, my question stems from that.  And

          3  there are people who have concerns, as we did, back

          4  when we were doing our underground storage tank

          5  hearings, about the number of spills that are

          6  throughout the City, and the level of investigation,

          7  the level of remediation that these various spills

          8  are at.

          9                 My question is, would the general

         10  public have access to the information?  Let's just

         11  say I was interested in, I was a student, I was a

         12  realtor, I was someone who wanted some information

         13  about the spills in a certain Borough or section of

         14  a Borough, whatever, and wanted to do some

         15  investigation on that, wanted to know how many

         16  spills were in the area, and what level of

         17  investigation they are at, what level of remediation

         18  they are at. Maybe some information on spills that

         19  have been totally cleaned up as per your regulations

         20  and so on.  To what extent does the general public

         21  have access to that kind of spill information?

         22                 MS. KRIS:  All of that is publicly

         23  available in two different ways.  Some of the, it is

         24  variable how much of it would be available

         25  electronically in the database.  Some matters have
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          2  quite a bit of detail in the database and you can

          3  get it right off of the CD- Rom, which is, I think,

          4  sold to the public, if I am not mistaken, for about

          5  $25 or something like that.  A lot of consultants

          6  buy it and have it as a research database.

          7                 The hard copy information, which is

          8  often extensive, in our files, is available under

          9  the Freedom of Information Law. And we get about, in

         10  my office, we get about 250 requests a month, under

         11  the Freedom of Information Law, almost all of which

         12  relate to spills.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         14                 MS. KRIS:  So, it is, we are in - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How about on-

         16  line?  They would not be able to go on- line and get

         17  that.

         18                 MS. KRIS:  I do not think so, I think

         19  those are all the kinds of goals that we have for

         20  the future.  But right now, it is more laborious.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.  And so

         22  if a member of the public wants this, they do the

         23  FOIL and they have to specifically, I guess, ask for

         24  a certain site, or a piece of geography, or could

         25  you say, all of Flushing, I want all the spills?  I
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          2  mean is it like that kind of thing?

          3                 MS. KRIS:  We hope not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, right.

          5                 MS. KRIS:  But that does happen.  It

          6  is best the more specific you can be about a

          7  location, the more likely it is  -  The two best

          8  things to do, is obviously, if you have a Spill

          9  number already, then we can immediately access that

         10  file.  In a large number of instances, people know

         11  what the Spill number is,  -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         13                 MS. KRIS: - -  because they have

         14  gotten it off of the database, and then we go back

         15  and we pull all the records that pertain to that

         16  Spill number.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         18                 MS. KRIS:  Other times what we get

         19  are requests just be a block and lot number or a

         20  street corner.  And that is harder for us to

         21  determine, but we go through and try to figure out

         22  whether in any of our programs, including the Spills

         23  Program, -               CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I

         24  see.

         25                 MS. KRIS: - -  we have information.
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          2  And then the files are made, other than incidental

          3  privilege material that might be in there, the files

          4  are made available for people to look at in person.

          5  Or if there are specific material that they know

          6  they want that they can identify, we can mail that

          7  to them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How long does

          9  it take before a spill actually comes to your

         10  attention?  I guess, if someone reports a spill, and

         11  I guess, there would be some level of investigation

         12  by your folks, or whatever, and they would go out

         13  there and they would assess the situation, see the

         14  free product, and I guess they would characterize it

         15  in some way.  And then it would, you know, make its

         16  way into your system, presumably, right? Do we know

         17  how long that takes from when the DEC personnel

         18  would, I guess, scope, I do not want to say scope

         19  the site, because I guess it is like a technical

         20  term, but become aware of the site and characterize

         21  it and get into your system, do you know how long

         22  that would take?

         23                 MS. KRIS:  I will tell you the

         24  process.  And the answer to how long, depends on the

         25  facts - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.

          3                 MS. KRIS: - -  with the particular

          4  incident, and how well the system worked.

          5                 But the Hotline number, it is a 24-

          6  hour number and it is a statewide number.  The phone

          7  calls go into a location in Albany.  And the

          8  information is only as good as the communication

          9  that starts initially - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         11                 MS. KRIS: - -  between the whoever

         12  the caller is and the person who takes the

         13  information.  I have, with me, an example of what

         14  the form looks like that gets generated.  But, the

         15  person who takes the information, immediately puts

         16  it into the database and then contacts whoever is on

         17  call.  We have spills responders on call 24 hours a

         18  day, seven days a week.  So, whoever is the primary

         19  responder will be notified immediately of any call

         20  that goes in.

         21                 Now, if it is an event that sounds

         22  like it is significant, they will go to the scene.

         23  If it sounds like, - - And on a weekend, let's say,

         24  you may have a half a dozen events, and you have to

         25  pick which ones - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          3                 MS. KRIS:  A lot, it sometimes hard

          4  to tell from the level of information whether a

          5  particular event is significant or insignificant,

          6  because oftentimes the information is not complete

          7  enough.

          8                 But in any case, we get those reports

          9  right away, within, I think, very promptly the hard

         10  copy is faxed down to the region and it is

         11  distributed around.  And we have a team of people

         12  that go out and look at them.  And if it is a

         13  significant event, then chances are that it will get

         14  very attention very early on, and will be handled

         15  very professionally.

         16                 The problem, of course, is where you

         17  get 4,000 or 5,000 calls a year that range from the

         18  sublime to the ridiculous, you will have a large

         19  number of events that maybe are small that will not

         20  get a lot of personnel attention.  It may get phone

         21  call attention, or it may get turfed to another

         22  agency, or people may be asked to supply

         23  information, and some are responsive, and some are

         24  not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, but it
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          2  certainly, also, gets spills from, you know,

          3  contractors who know what they are coming across,

          4  they know who to call, and then like you know if you

          5  are dealing with sort of like the - -  I guess it is

          6  really that, you know, that kind of guess work,

          7  because I am sure some of your calls do come in from

          8  responsible contractors who are involved in

          9  excavation work, they see the stuff in the ground,

         10  and then they call you folks, bring you in.  Because

         11  to not do so would put them in violation.

         12                 So, okay, you have explained the

         13  process.  But, ultimately, it makes its way into

         14  your system, it gets investigated, ultimately

         15  remediated, and you would be the regulator for that

         16  remediation process.

         17                 MS. KRIS:  Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now when you do

         19  get these reports of, I guess, let's call them

         20  ground spills, just to make a differentiation

         21  between something which is released into the air and

         22  something which is released on the surface, like a

         23  tanker truck falling over.  So, I guess, it is like

         24  air surface, and like under the ground, let's call

         25  it an under the ground kind of spill.
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          2                 Are these spills, once you get them

          3  reported to you and you take action by putting them

          4  into your system, do you, within the City of New

          5  York, formally notify the DEP of these kinds these

          6  kinds of spills?  A trick question.

          7                 MS. KRIS:  No, I am not sure I know

          8  the answer.  I am not 100 percent sure, but I do not

          9  think so, not unless it was something that we had

         10  reason to think would be relevant to another agency.

         11    DEP may, they are here. - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I can always

         13  ask them.

         14                 MS. KRIS:  I do not think so, unless

         15  we think there is a reason they would be interested.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am not saying

         17  that it should or should not happen, I am just

         18  trying to probe a little bit whether or not, you

         19  know, you have got a contractor does an excavation,

         20  takes out a tank, who knows what, free product in

         21  the ground.  Uh oh, they call you - -

         22                 MS. KRIS:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  you get

         24  there.  And then I am wondering if it is sort of

         25  part of the regular course of doing business, that
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          2  you would actually notify DEP of that.

          3                 MS. KRIS:  I would say not.  I think

          4  we tend to on an emergency situation.  We are pretty

          5  good about notifying each other.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          7                 MS. KRIS:  On a routine - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Because some

          9  are, obviously, in an emergency, a tank is split

         10  open, there is gasoline all over the place, who the

         11  heck knows - -

         12                 MS. KRIS:  Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And everybody

         14  has got to get there and do their part.

         15                 MS. KRIS:  We would routinely notify

         16  DEP, if we thought there was an impact to a sewer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         18                 MS. KRIS:  Or something else that

         19  came within their purview.  If it looked like it was

         20  something that we were going to sole responsibility

         21  to address, I doubt that we would notify them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  When you

         23  were talking about the databases that you wanted to

         24  create.  I know you indicated that there would be

         25  public access to these databases. Would it be your
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          2  intention to put them on- line, or how would that

          3  work?

          4                 MS. KRIS:  I do not know the answer

          5  to that.  I would guess that that is the case.  I

          6  will say though, that where there is a tension

          7  between trying to make more and more reliable

          8  information available to the public, and at the same

          9  time, recognizing some of the risks, security risks

         10  associated with that. And that is something that I

         11  think is being debated.  We have conversations going

         12  on between our people who are in charge of making

         13  full disclosure and the people who are looking at

         14  public security issues.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, I was not

         16  telling you what your answer should be.

         17                 MS. KRIS:  No, I do not think, and I

         18  think that is a little down the road.  I would guess

         19  that that is the answer, but I do not know that to

         20  be the case.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

         22  you.  With regard to the spill database for these

         23  sort of in- ground, you know, traditional, if you

         24  can call them spills or whatever.  I do not, that is

         25  the problem it may be a silly way to characterize
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          2  them, but you know what we are talking about.  All

          3  these people who clean up their underground sewage

          4  tanks, there are spills all over the place.  And I

          5  think the Counsel seemed to hear that the spill

          6  component of the database would ultimately be

          7  available on- line with  - -  Was that you intention

          8  to eventually put the spill database on- line?

          9  Certainly, it is available publicly now.  Is there a

         10  concrete plan to put that in?

         11                 MS. KRIS:  What my colleague tells

         12  me, is that, we have actually put it on- line, over

         13  the Internet, and then pulled it back after 9/11.

         14  And I think, again, I think that is being looked at

         15  to what extent public access should be made.  That

         16  is the debate.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So people used

         18  to be able go on- line and look at, like where, not

         19  like locations of sensitive information, sensitive

         20  substances of where they were being stored, but of

         21  spills, spills in the ground.  And one used to be

         22  able go on- line and get that information.

         23                 MS. KRIS:  I am being told that about

         24  six months ago, we successfully, finally got the

         25  spills database and some of these other databases
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          2  on- line.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  On- line?

          4                 MS. KRIS:  But after 9/11, there was,

          5  the Office of Public Protection asked all of the

          6  State agencies to take a really, really hard look at

          7  what was being put on- line, and to pull back, until

          8  the overall State's strategy on Homeland Security

          9  was worked through.

         10                 So those things are not currently on-

         11  line.  And I guess that debate will continue, I

         12  guess, for a little while.  I do not know what the

         13  outcome is going to be.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, while I

         15  can certainly see, or when we are talking about

         16  locations of hazardous materials and like where they

         17  are being stored, that is, I guess, one thing. But

         18  when we are talking about spills of like petroleum

         19  that is in the ground, and what level of

         20  investigation or remediation it is, I do not see

         21  that as all that sensitive.  I mean, people want to

         22  know where like the product is that is in the

         23  ground, and to what extent that is in clean up and

         24  so on.  And they want information about that so that

         25  they can, think about where they want to live, or
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          2  where they want to site a business, or you know, who

          3  knows. That seems less touchy than the storage of

          4  hazardous chemicals, or whatever.

          5                 Okay, we are just trying to get some

          6  kind of insight into it.   So depending upon, and

          7  so, the ultimate plan would be, once the State, in

          8  coordination with the federal Office of Homeland

          9  Security, whatever, decides what its policies are

         10  going to be regarding what does and does not go back

         11  out over the Net, is there some overall state - -

         12                 MS. KRIS:  It is my belief that there

         13  are, that these issues are being looked at, at high

         14  levels, in all the State agencies in concert with

         15  the federal government.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         17                 MS. KRIS:  And I do not, you know, I

         18  am not up- to date with today's thinking is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, that is

         20  quite all right, you have shed a lot of light for

         21  us, and we do appreciate that. Let me just see if I

         22  have one more question for you.

         23                 Okay, I want to thank you very much

         24  for your testimony.  Please, do not forget to send

         25  the Commissioner our best wishes.  And we thank you

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  for being here, and we very much look forward to

          3  working with you on this and all of the other

          4  important issues that we have to deal with.  So,

          5  thanks a lot for coming.

          6                 MS. KRIS:  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We appreciate

          8  it.

          9                 MS. KRIS:  My pleasure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Take care.

         11  Okay, I would like to indicate that we are joined by

         12  Council Member Vallone of Queens.

         13                 Our next witnesses, Commissioner

         14  Avaltroni of the Department of Environmental

         15  Protection, and Inspector John Colgan of the New

         16  York City Police Department.  I know two, there are

         17  three, but what we will do, is we will have Donna

         18  administer the oath, and then each of you will, if

         19  you would be so kind, after that, to identify

         20  yourselves, for the record, and proceed with your

         21  testimony.

         22                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Could you please

         23  raise your right hand?  In the testimony that you

         24  are about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         25  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
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          2  truth?

          3                 ALL:  We will.

          4                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you all

          6  very much for being here.  I guess, I just, thank

          7  you for your patience.  I know that this hearing was

          8  supposed to start for you, folks, at 10:00, then we

          9  moved it to 10:30, and then it did not start until

         10  after that, and then there was a witness that went

         11  on before the Administration.  So you are profiles

         12  in patience, and I do appreciate it very much.  And

         13  so I welcome you, first and foremost. And if you

         14  could just identify, for the record, and proceed

         15  with your testimony?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Good

         17  morning, Mr. Chairman and Council Member Vallone and

         18  staff.  I am Bob Avaltroni, seated to my left, is

         19  Monstafa Fawzy, who is the Director of Emergency

         20  Response and Technical Assessment at DEP.  He is

         21  here to answer any questions you might have from a

         22  technical perspective, and I think it will enhance

         23  our conversation.  Obviously, as you mentioned

         24  before, John Colgan, Inspector John Colgan is to my

         25  right.  He is the Executive Director (sic) of the
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          2  Counter- Terrorism Unit at the Police Department,

          3  and he will have a statement to make as well, but I

          4  think I will begin with our statement from DEP.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  By all means.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          7  Again, it is a pleasure to be with you, and on

          8  behalf of Commissioner Ward, I want to thank you for

          9  this opportunity to comment on Intro. 47- A.  Let me

         10  also say that I and my colleagues were very happy to

         11  meet with your staff to discuss issues associated

         12  with hazardous materials the other day.  I hope we

         13  can continue our dialogue, and I repeat, and earlier

         14  invitation to you and your staff, to please visit

         15  our offices to have a better feel for what we are

         16  doing.  It is also my hope that the Council will

         17  reconsider Intro. 47- A.

         18                 Our concerns with this proposed bill

         19  fall into two general categories:

         20                 First, it is not clear there is a

         21  need for the specific database that the legislation

         22  would mandate.

         23                 Second, both DEP and the New York

         24  City PD, believe that if a database, such as the one

         25  specified by Intro. 47- A were to be created, it
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          2  would be imprudent to make the database accessible

          3  to the general public as Intro. 47- A requires.

          4                 And in the rest of my statement I

          5  will expand on two concerns.  With respect to the

          6  need for the Intro. 47- A database, the Committee is

          7  aware that DEP is in the process of making certain

          8  modifications to the Citywide Facility Inventory

          9  Database, or CFID. Under the City's Right- to- Know

         10  Law, which we have discussed at considerable length

         11  in the past, as you know, facilities must annually

         12  submit to DEP an inventory of the hazardous

         13  substances present at their facilities.  The CFID is

         14  the repository of the chemical inventory information

         15  submitted to DEP.  The CFID was constructed over 10

         16  years ago, using now outdated software that does not

         17  provide all the capabilities afforded by modern

         18  software. One such capability is allowing emergency

         19  response agencies to have on- line access to the

         20  CFID.  DEP is in the process of replacing the CFID

         21  with a more modern system that will enhance its

         22  ability to meet the goals of the Right- to- Know

         23  program.

         24                 Through a series of amendments to the

         25  New York City Spill Bill, Intro. 47- A mandates the
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          2  creation of a second database that will have access

          3  to the CFID.  In addition to having access to the

          4  CFID, Intro. 47- A provides that this second

          5  database will also have access to an extremely broad

          6  range of information, although it is not clear what

          7  purpose this second database is intended to serve.

          8                 For example, the proposed section 24-

          9  613(a) contains a sentence that would require the

         10  Intro. 47- A database to have access to information

         11  stored on every computerized database maintained by

         12  any other City agency.  If that sentence were

         13  modified to make clear that the requirement only

         14  applied to information and database pertaining to

         15  hazardous substances, and not, say, information on

         16  other subjects, the requirement is extremely broad.

         17  Without establishing a clear and specific purpose

         18  for such a broad requirement, DEP cannot say how it

         19  would comply with this requirement, and, more

         20  importantly, whether the requirement is suited to

         21  the purpose for which it was intended.            A

         22  related example is the proposed section 24- 613(d),

         23  which requires that information pertaining to the

         24  location of all pipelines, valves, and control

         25  devices that transport petroleum and natural gas,
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          2  be provided to DEP, among other agencies.  However,

          3  section 24- 613(d) does not specifically require

          4  that the new database mandated in early provisions

          5  of the legislation actually have access to the

          6  pipeline information.  If the intent of section 24-

          7  613(d) is that information on petroleum and natural

          8  gas pipelines merely be provided to DEP and selected

          9  other agencies, it is not clear what purpose is

         10  served.  Depending on the purpose of section 24-

         11  613(d) existing reporting requirements under the

         12  Fire Code may suffice.

         13                 It is DEP's recommendation that the

         14  Council review the extent to which the enhanced

         15  CFID, or other existing databases, accomplish what I

         16  perceive to be our collective objectives.  And, once

         17  again, I invite to meet with us on a continued

         18  basis.

         19                 With respect to security issues, on-

         20  line access to information on hazardous substances

         21  presents a greatly increased risk that information

         22  could be used in a harmful way.  As you know,

         23  information in the CFID is already available to the

         24  public.  But it is only available upon written

         25  request and no member of the public has access to
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          2  the entire CFID.  It would be extremely imprudent to

          3  allow unrestricted on- line access to a second

          4  database that has access to all of the information

          5  in the CFID, as well as additional information

          6  provided from other agencies, as well as information

          7  on hazardous substance releases.

          8                 That concludes my prepared remarks,

          9  again, representing DEP.  I thank you for the

         10  opportunity to testify.  And as I said, I and my

         11  staff would be happy to answer any questions. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  Commissioner, thank you very much.  I think what I

         15  will do rather than proceed to questions for you, I

         16  will allow the representative of the Police

         17  Department to make his good statement, and then we

         18  will ask questions in concert, if you sort of want

         19  to join in with each other, that would be great.

         20                 Let me take this opportunity to

         21  welcome you, Inspector Colgan.  Thank you very much

         22  for being here.  I appreciate the great evaluative

         23  that you are going to bring to this discussion, and

         24  I know you have many, many that you have to do, and

         25  I thank you for being here and for helping us out.
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          2  So, I would like to ask you to proceed with your

          3  testimony.

          4                 INSPECTOR COLGAN: Thank you, Chairman

          5  Gennaro.  Good morning, Chairman, Council Member

          6  Vallone, ladies and gentlemen. Mr. Chairman, I would

          7  like to say it is my privileges, as well as my civic

          8  duty to be here this morning, and I appreciate the

          9  welcome.

         10                 I am Inspector John Colgan, and

         11  contrary to what the Commissioner said, I am not an

         12  Executive Director, I am an Inspector in the New

         13  York City Police Department, Executive Officer of

         14  the Counter- Terrorism Bureau.  I appear here before

         15  you this morning to urge you, passionately, if I

         16  may, not to amend the City's Administrative Code

         17  with the passage of Intro. 47- A.  I respectfully

         18  submit, that in my professional opinion as a police

         19  officer for 22 years, that the proposed legislation

         20  presents significant opportunity for misuse of

         21  publicly available information and could have a

         22  deleterious impact relative to City assets and

         23  interests.

         24                 Specifically, it is my judgement that

         25  availability of the information specified in Intro.
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          2  No. 47- A would provide direct assistance to anyone

          3  intent upon committing terrorist acts against either

          4  our citizens and our City's infrastructure.  The

          5  public availability of such specific detail, as

          6  required in Intro. No. 47- A, would effectively and

          7  directly provide those who would commit acts of

          8  violence against us, direct, immediate, convenient,

          9  and most dangerous anonymous access to intelligence,

         10  which could easily be exploited in tactical strikes

         11  against us.  In reaching this conclusion, I asked

         12  the following five questions relative to the

         13  information required for broad public distribution

         14  under Intro. No. 47- A.

         15                 Question 1:  Does the information

         16  required provide details concerning, what we call,

         17  enterprise safety and security? I believe it clearly

         18  does.  Section 24- 613, subdivision a, subsections 1

         19  and 2, may easily be exploited to reveal the

         20  following intelligence relative to our vulnerability

         21  to attack and our ability to mitigate ensuing risks:

         22                 1.  How long a period of time may

         23  elapse before a hazardous substance release is

         24  detected by competent authority.

         25                 2.  The nature and quantity of
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          2  hazardous substances stored at potential target

          3  sites.

          4                 3.  The ability of emergency response

          5  personnel to effectively manage consequences with

          6  countermeasures currently in place.

          7                 Subsection 3 affords those with

          8  criminal intent the opportunity to literally get the

          9  biggest bang for the buck.  It is not in our

         10  interest to make widely known the locations of large

         11  caches of dangerous materials.  No effective army,

         12  for example, would knowingly hand its opponents a

         13  list of locations at which it stores its fuel and

         14  ammunition supplies.

         15                 Question 2:  Could release of this

         16  information prove dangerous in and of itself or if

         17  used in conjunction with other publicly available

         18  data?  I believe it could; the nature of the

         19  information made readily available under this

         20  Section could easily be used by hostile agents to

         21  inform targeting decisions, assuming a desire for

         22  high yield impact with low- tech attack approach,

         23  high yield impact, low- tech attack approach.  We

         24  saw that on September 11th.

         25                 Question 3:  How could someone intent
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          2  on causing harm, misuse this information?  I believe

          3  the answer to this question is obvious, but I will,

          4  of course, elaborate.  The information required to

          5  be broadly distributed under this proposal will

          6  potentially afford our adversaries the opportunity

          7  to develop virtual road maps into our vulnerability

          8  centers.  I am not prepared to suffer the

          9  consequences of that.

         10                 Question 4:  Could someone use the

         11  information above to target personnel, or a physical

         12  plant, or resources?  I answer with a resounding

         13  yes, in light of my previous remarks.

         14                 Question 5:  And finally, could a

         15  potential attacker use the information to make

         16  tactical strike decisions against an asset?  Well

         17  the answer is self- evident, of course they could.

         18                 Any answer in the affirmative to any

         19  of the five queries I posed, is, in my opinion,

         20  sufficient, justifiable reason not to post such data

         21  on- line, irrespective of whether or not it is

         22  intended to make such intelligence, because that is

         23  what it is, available to the general public.  We all

         24  know, everyone of us, that the most robust database

         25  security systems have fallen victim to dedicated
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          2  hackers, and that cyber- terror and criminal misuse

          3  of publicly available materials of a sensitive

          4  nature will grow in direct proportion to our

          5  willingness to expose ourselves to such risks.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  appear before you this morning, Mr. Chairman, on

          8  this critically important matter. I welcome any

          9  questions you may have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         11  Inspector, thank you very much.  I would like to

         12  assure everyone who is present today, that the bill

         13  that is before us today is not going to be moved

         14  forward in its current form, that should, a little

         15  something.               However, when staff was

         16  involved in a meeting just a few days ago with DEP,

         17  it was, you know, DEP's intent, ultimately, to put

         18  the information from the Facility Inventory Forms of

         19  the locations of hazardous materials on- line, this

         20  was as a couple of days ago.  It was my

         21  understanding that DEP intend to do, although, it

         22  would not be with, let us say, unrestricted internet

         23  access, it would be via some methodology where they

         24  could see who was accessing it, or I do not know

         25  what, and that had not been fully figured out.  But
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          2  it is not just this Council that has, I guess, some

          3  interest in trying to make available in a prudent

          4  way information that could be useful to people, but,

          5  you know, it is DEP, itself.  So everyone you know,

          6  should read your testimony and take heed.

          7                 INSPECTOR COLGAN:  I certainly hope

          8  they will.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And

         11  let me just speak on behalf of DEP, because I do not

         12  want this to be taken out of context.  I think I

         13  made it abundantly clear that our intent, and I

         14  think the intent that you, Mr. Chairman, have

         15  suggested in the past, is that the purpose of our

         16  database being available is really to have a

         17  situation - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, pardon me,

         19  I will just have you answer this one question, and

         20  then I just remembered that Council Member Vallone

         21  had made a request of me to ask questions, because

         22  he has a time constraint.  So I will just let you

         23  finish this answer, and then I will just jump right

         24  to Peter.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,
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          2  I think it is imperative, because I do not want this

          3  taking out of context.  We are developing a database

          4  that would provide access to people responding to

          5  emergencies and that better allows us to have, as

          6  was suggested in previous testimony, a laptop

          7  computer that would say, at this facility exists

          8  certain chemicals that may be hazardous. We are also

          9  looking to put out information that has significant

         10  restrictions.  And again, that would be under the

         11  purview of our Division of Emergency Response and

         12  Technical Assessment.

         13                 I completely support what, obviously,

         14  our sister agency and the Police Department has

         15  suggested, and we would not move without them, and

         16  that is why I thought that this Intro. Was

         17  premature, and that is why I felt our ongoing

         18  communication would be helpful.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is great.

         20  But I just, you know, continue to be confused

         21  because, I was not at the meeting, or when it came

         22  back, when they came back and staff talked to me and

         23  said, well, look, you know it is DEP's intent to put

         24  this out on- line anyway, although, with some sort

         25  of modification, or some sort of, I do not know, it
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          2  was going on- line anyway.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          4  Again, that is why that I asked that this Intro. Not

          5  be brought to the floor today, and that continued

          6  discussion take place.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  What I

          8  am going to do is I am going to, I want to

          9  recognize, we have a member of the Committee,

         10  Council Member Serrano from the Bronx.

         11                 But Councilman Vallone, who is Chair

         12  of the Public Safety Committee, and has a time

         13  constraint, I want to permit him to ask questions

         14  now.  Certainly, this is very relevant to his area

         15  of expertise.  So I will defer to him for the time

         16  being, so I recognize Council Member Vallone.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.  I do have, as do many members of the

         19  Committee, other hearing going on at the same time,

         20  which is where I have to go to now, regarding the

         21  budget, a little bit of a budget hold we are in

         22  right now, I think you are familiar with.

         23                 Let me first recognize the good work

         24  that our Chairman is doing with regard to this bill.

         25    I think he has indicated to you that your concerns
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          2  are noted and will be addressed.  Because I, as you

          3  probably do not share the Public Safety, and I have

          4  spoken to the Police Department prior to this,

          5  regarding this bill, and to Mr. Avaltroni, and I

          6  share your concerns, and that is one of the reasons

          7  why this bill will not go forward as it is, as our

          8  Chairman has indicated.

          9                 But there are very good reasons why

         10  he is considering this bill, and he and I have

         11  spoken to actual hazmat workers who have told us

         12  that as the system now exists, when there is a fire

         13  or some other situation, someone needs to run to a

         14  central location and go through files by hand and

         15  pull out the information as to, regarding what

         16  materials may be at this location, which is, which

         17  we all agreed at the last hearing, is not a

         18  situation we think our workers should be facing.

         19  And that is basically what this is meant to address.

         20                 And while we have you here, I would

         21  like to get your input on how we could, and I think

         22  you just answered the question, Bob, two seconds

         23  before I asked it.  But apparently you are working

         24  on a system right now, which is not in place, as far

         25  as I am told, which will address these concerns.
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          2  But how can we address the concerns that we have

          3  regarding the safety of our citizens and of our

          4  workers, while at the same time, making sure that

          5  the public safety and security measures remain

          6  paramount?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONi:  I

          8  think the answer, Councilman Vallone, would be, that

          9  as I suggested before, that we continue to meet,

         10  that you become more familiar with what we are

         11  doing, because essentially we are on the same page.

         12  And quite frankly, the Administration does not feel

         13  that the Introduction of a bill is necessary.  So I

         14  think we share the concerns, and I also share your

         15  assessment of Chairman Gennaro, who has been very

         16  aggressive in moving ahead in the Environmental

         17  Committee.  But I think it would be prudent for us

         18  to continue our dialogue, and you, I think, know, as

         19  well as the other members of this Committee, that I

         20  am not one to sit on things, I am one to move

         21  things.  But I think we need to do that

         22  constructively and prudently.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, let me

         24  just say that I am well aware of how well you work,

         25  Mr. Avaltroni, and very well aware of how diligent
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          2  and tenacious our Chairman is of this Committee.  So

          3  I am sure that you will come to some sort of

          4  agreement as to what should be done at a minimum of

          5  time table as to what you are intending to do

          6  regarding making this information accessible to the

          7  people who need it, and not the general public. And

          8  I am sure you will keep him informed and he will

          9  keep us informed.  And I thank you for your time.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  Councilman Vallone, I appreciate that.

         14                 Okay, now, if I could just address

         15  one question to the Inspector.  With regard to

         16  spills, you know, these in- ground spills of

         17  petroleum, a lot of people have concerns about the

         18  spills that exist throughout the City.  And the time

         19  table it takes to get these things fully

         20  investigated, and fully cleaned up.  You know, there

         21  is a sense that there is not a heck of a lot of

         22  daylight on this process, and that some spills have

         23  been there for, you know, it takes a long period of

         24  time to be fully investigated, and then be fully

         25  scoped out for clean up, and then ultimate clean up,
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          2  and then there are various stages of clean up.  And

          3  if we were to put all the spills of the City on some

          4  big board or whatever, we would see that there are

          5  many, many of them.

          6                 And I, for one, believe it is

          7  important for there to be a little more daylight

          8  into this process, and these are just simple spills,

          9  you know, of petroleum products, plumes in the

         10  ground and so on, not storage of hazardous materials

         11  in one location, but this, you know, one other area

         12  where this bill could ultimately go to give the

         13  public more access to spills that have already been

         14  made, that are in the ground, that are of, you know,

         15  gasoline or petroleum or whatever.  And to what

         16  extent do you believe that more open public access

         17  to a spill database and the level of cleanup of

         18  these various sites, you know, to what extent do you

         19  think, you know, you might have public safety

         20  concerns regarding that kind of information being

         21  out there?  Someone who wanted to start a business

         22  or to move into a neighborhood, wanted to know, you

         23  know of the existence of dry cleaning chemicals that

         24  have been put into the ground that are currently

         25  being cleaned up, or this gas station that had a
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          2  leak in the tank, or something, because, you know, a

          3  wide perception that these spill cleanups take a

          4  real long time.  And to the extent that we give

          5  people more, to the extent that we can have more

          6  daylight into this process and let the public know

          7  how these spills are being cleaned up and at what

          8  pace, I think we would get faster cleanups.  And so,

          9  but I ask you for your public safety perspective on

         10  the release of that kind of information?

         11                 INSPECTOR COLGAN:  I will answer that

         12  question indirectly, if I may?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         14                 INSPECTOR COLGAN:  In my previous

         15  assignment in the New York City Police Department, I

         16  was responsible for all of the Department's real

         17  estate, for all capital construction.  I routinely

         18  worked with DEC Region 2.  We did lead remediation

         19  at the outdoor range, a 47- acre facility.  I

         20  routinely worked with DEP, I was routinely tasked

         21  with cleanup of sites on which we wanted to build

         22  station houses, sites that had been polluted by

         23  others.

         24                 I never found, however, that Chapter

         25  7 of the current statute left me with less
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          2  information than I needed.  The Community Right- to-

          3  Know Law, as articulated in Chapter 7 of the

          4  statute, satisfied every need that I had as an agent

          5  of New York City government to ensure that I knew

          6  what I was building on, and whether or not I would

          7  want my people in it.

          8                 I am also very familiar with the

          9  sites around the City where perc was found in

         10  facilities that were previously used as dry cleaning

         11  establishments and laundry.  Those are the sites I

         12  would avoid based on information that was made

         13  publicly available under the current 1988 Statute

         14  Chapter 7.

         15                 With respect to the issue you brought

         16  up before, however, about underground spills.

         17  Assuming today that the tanks are double hulled as

         18  required by the New York City Rules and Regulations,

         19  with which I am also very familiar.  I would ask the

         20  question, if I were the tactician looking to send a

         21  missile your way, where did that petroleum come

         22  from?  And I would probably, by extrapolation, and

         23  computer software that is out there on the market,

         24  be able to figure out where the Petroleum Bulk

         25  Storage Facility underground is that I want to
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          2  target.

          3                 So, while I am not prepared to speak

          4  other than to Intro. No. 47- A, I would say, Sir,

          5  that without seeing the statute proposed directly,

          6  that I would have significant public security

          7  concerns.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With just basic

          9  spill information?

         10                 INSPECTOR COLGAN:  Sir, without the

         11  opportunity to look directly at the statute, I would

         12  reserve my opinion and suggest that I would have

         13  security concern.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Let me

         15  just, I have some questions here for Commissioner

         16  Avaltroni.  And, Bob, I will ask you the question I

         17  asked of Mary Ellen Kris before, with regard to, you

         18  know, DEC notifying you of spill information that

         19  they get, is that, I mean, - -  and she indicated

         20  that DEP would not be contacted unless it was a

         21  spill that required your involvement or assistance,

         22  or affected some of your infrastructure.  Would that

         23  be consistent?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         25  is correct.  I think, but there are protocols,
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          2  obviously, and I think as Mary Ellen alluded to,

          3  obviously, determinations are made at a site, at an

          4  incident in terms of the protocols to be followed in

          5  terms of notification process.  Those protocols are

          6  followed very stringently by the City and by DEP,

          7  and it not only goes to DEC, but it can involve the

          8  Coast Guard if we have something in their purview,

          9  as well.

         10                 So we are very cognizant of our

         11  ability and our responsibility to notify the

         12  appropriate authorities of any incident site, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Thank

         15  you, thank you, Bob.

         16                 With regard to people making a FOIL

         17  request of DEP for hazardous substance information,

         18  they can currently do that now?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         20  they can. However, I think there was an amendment to

         21  the law several years ago, which allows us to look

         22  through the request and to give out information as

         23  we see fit.  And as I suggested before, a strong

         24  case has been made by PD, we do not do things in a

         25  vacuum, as you folks do not.  That is why we will
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          2  look at the request, we will evaluate it, and make

          3  sure that we act prudently and not violating any

          4  security concerns.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, I just

          6  have one other, I guess it is the same note of

          7  confusion I had.  I mean, is it your testimony that

          8  at the meeting with staff the other day, DEP never

          9  indicated that it was going to put the contents of

         10  the Facility Inventory Forms, that it was going to

         11  make that available by some on- line access, even

         12  though restricted or whatever?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  What

         14  we said was it would be restricted, and also, we

         15  would not release certain elements of the report.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but it

         17  would be, it would potentially, I mean, at least,

         18  DEP was thinking about making it available, certain

         19  aspects, or certain elements of the FIF information

         20  on- line via some mechanism, if that made sense to

         21  do that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         23  is correct, that is correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And
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          2  then to take it a step further, that is why, again,

          3  I suggest that we have a dialogue with our

          4  respective staffs, which includes PD, who is also at

          5  the meeting the other day, to ensure that what we

          6  are doing is deliberate and effective.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Let's

          8  talk about something that I think everyone is going

          9  to like here.  Okay, can we do that just for a

         10  minute?  I think this will be good.

         11                 Bob and his staff have made diligent

         12  efforts over the last couple of years to bring the

         13  number of FIF filers, you know, those that handle

         14  these hazardous materials up from 3,000 and change

         15  up to it is 5,000 and a lot of change.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It is

         17  5,700 approximately, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And so that is,

         19  you know, that is terrific progress, which I

         20  congratulate you for, and I think we are all happy

         21  about that.  Because to the extent that people are

         22  harboring,- -  harboring, listen to me, - -  who are

         23  storing  -  I got the lingo now, you know,

         24  harboring, gees.  I just get pulled right into the

         25  whole cloak and dagger thing, you know, assets, the
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          2  whole, that is great.

          3                 But to the extent that people are

          4  storing and using these substances, we certainly

          5  want to know about that.  I had indicated that it

          6  would, I thought, you know, very desirable for DEP

          7  to do whatever it could to identify the full

          8  universe of people who should be filing, but are

          9  not, and perhaps, that could be some how

         10  accomplished through some consulting contract by

         11  which we could find out who these people are and get

         12  them into the system.  And I know we have had some

         13  brief comments that it is something you folks want

         14  to embrace.  Because I think the first step towards

         15  getting everyone who should be filing these forms is

         16  to, you know, find out who they are and to get, you

         17  know, just to ID the total universe, and then take

         18  steps to bring them in.

         19                 Do you have an update on that

         20  initiative?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         22  I can say that, and we commend you for, obviously,

         23  offering that to us.  And because we have made

         24  significant progress, we appreciate the pat on the

         25  back, but we feel we could do more.  I think you
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          2  raised an issue to both myself and Commissioner Ward

          3  that we considered, and we will be using a

          4  consultant to enhance our database further.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But the effort

          6  would be to do some concerted outreach or

          7  investigation, or whatever, to find out, I guess,

          8  who is purchasing these materials so that we can get

          9  a handle on, you know, who they are and then sort of

         10  bring them in. And that could be in concert with,

         11  you know, some kind of legislative initiative or

         12  increase penalties for non- filing, or you know,

         13  whatever we can do to bring people who are currently

         14  outside of the system, into the system, I would

         15  wholeheartedly support. And it would be great to

         16  work on something with us and you folks and Police,

         17  it is something that we all realize is very critical

         18  thing to do to bring them in.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         20  certainly agree, we are on the same page, and we

         21  look forward to working with you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, sure.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And

         24  we thank you for the suggestion.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet.  Just
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          2  hang on one second.  I would like to recognize the

          3  presence of Councilman Comrie, our Whip here, at the

          4  Council, who actually put this legislation forward

          5  and started the ball rolling, so we thank him for

          6  his good efforts and for getting this dialogue

          7  going, which ultimately will result in something

          8  fruitful and beneficial to everyone.  So, thank you,

          9  Council Member Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.  I am sorry I could not be here, just to

         12  let the audience know, we are still in a Democratic

         13  Caucus meeting, and as head of the Queens

         14  Delegation, I have to go and try to hold our

         15  Delegation together during these difficult budget

         16  negotiations, so I leave it the hands of my able

         17  Chairman to make sure that this bill is put together

         18  in a comprehensive way.

         19                 As you know, our original intent for

         20  this bill is just to provide better access, not to

         21  make it available for John Doe or Osama, Jr. To get

         22  a list of hazardous materials to hurt our City or

         23  our Country.  So I appreciate the dialogue that has

         24  been put forth so far, and we want to make sure that

         25  everything is done so that the City is protected,
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          2  but also our City employees that have to interact

          3  with these spills in some kind of way, or the Health

          4  Department that may get a deluge of people, and they

          5  need to know why on an immediate basis, or

          6  especially how we clean up the spills, and those are

          7  the areas that the bill, that I think together in

          8  detail negotiation we can resolve amicably.

          9                 And I am sorry, I have to leave.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         11  concur completely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  Councilman Comrie, appreciate it.

         14                 Just one further question on, for the

         15  request, when someone makes a FOIL request of

         16  information, and DEP, of course, has a process by

         17  which it determines whether or not this a request

         18  that, you know, should be satisfied or whatever.  Is

         19  that done wholly within DEP, or is it done in

         20  conjunction with the Police Department or something?

         21    Could you just give me a view into, just give us a

         22  little view into that process, and also, the time

         23  table?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         25  will speak briefly, but to my left, again, is the
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          2  expert in that area.  And I just want to say that,

          3  Monstafa Fawzy is one of the great people we have at

          4  DEP and is an expert in hazardous materials.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  There are a lot

          6  of great people at DEP.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          8  there are.  And he also, works diligently with the

          9  Police Department, with the Fire Department, with

         10  the FBI, and is acutely aware of the concerns, the

         11  security concerns and his responsibility.  So, he

         12  will make the assessment in conjunction with others

         13  where necessary.  Again, his reputation is

         14  significant and I am very pleased to have him on my

         15  staff, he makes me look very good.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

         17  you, thank you very much.  I have no further

         18  questions.  But I just wish to thank you for being

         19  here today.  Do I have a further question?  I might

         20  have a further question, I will let you know.  As it

         21  turns out, I do not have any further questions for

         22  you.  I think she just wanted to clarify something

         23  for me.  Sometimes I am a little slow in the uptake,

         24  but thank you very much for your compelling

         25  testimony, particularly, your testimony, Inspector,
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          2  I appreciate it very much.

          3                 INSPECTOR COLGAN:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

          5  being here.  It was a great service to the City,

          6  your being here today.  And I wish to thank you

          7  personally and on behalf of all the members of the

          8  Committee for your compelling testimony, thank you.

          9                 INSPECTOR COLGAN:  Thank you, Sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         11  much.  And Bob, as always, a pleasure to see you.

         12  Bob is also my great friend, as well as my colleague

         13  in government, that is now no secret.  Okay.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Thank

         15  you, Mr. Chairman, it is always a pleasure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, you bet.

         17  Thank you very much.  And we have our next, the next

         18  witness, hang on one second. The next panel will be

         19  Joel Shufro, it will be a panel, it will be three

         20  witnesses, Joel Shufro, Joel Kupferman, and Anne

         21  Berger. Okay, and then after that would be Mr.

         22  Steven Vitale from Key Span Energy, and anyone else

         23  from Key Span who wishes to testify.

         24                 I just have to excuse myself for

         25  about two minutes to return a telephone call.  My
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          2  father- in- law is undergoing surgery today, and the

          3  surgery will commence in about an hour and a half, I

          4  just have to return a call related to that.  So if

          5  you would just pardon me, just for two minutes, I

          6  will be right back.  But the other panel, the panel

          7  that I have called can come to the witness table and

          8  make themselves ready.  Thank you, I will be right

          9  back.

         10                 (Recess taken.)

         11                 I sorry for the delay.  We are going

         12  to continue with the hearing.  And the next panel

         13  has been assembled and have been patiently waiting,

         14  and I ask Donna to give the oath, and then the

         15  witnesses can proceed with their testimony.

         16                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         17  right hands?  In the testimony that you are about to

         18  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         19  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         20                 ALL:  I do.

         21                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         23  much.  You may consider yourselves under oath.  And

         24  I guess, each in turn can present testimony,

         25  starting with this side of the table, okay, we will
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          2  go that way.  How is that?

          3                 MS. BERGER:  Great.  Is my microphone

          4  on?  Thank you, Chairman Gennaro.  I am very pleased

          5  to be able to testify here today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We are very

          7  pleased to have you.

          8                 MS. BERGER:  Thank you.  And I will

          9  introduce myself.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Please.

         11                 MS. BERGER:  My name is Anne Berger.

         12  I am a Senior Outreach Consultant with Inform, a New

         13  York City- based not- for profit organization, and

         14  for 25 years, over 25 years Inform has identified

         15  and promoted environmentally sustainable practices.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Everybody knows

         17  that, of course, who does not know that, everybody

         18  knows that.

         19                 MS. BERGER:  Well that is what I

         20  figured, but you have to provide the - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, it is

         22  always nice to hear though, it is always nice to

         23  hear it.

         24                 MS. BERGER:  A little reminder.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MS. BERGER:  Thank you, and I will be

          3  in my testimony.

          4                 Inform has a long history of

          5  designing and analyzing Right- to- Know laws and

          6  other strategies for protecting communities from

          7  toxic chemical hazards.

          8                 In the early 1980s, Inform and other

          9  environmental organizations advocated for collecting

         10  national data on toxic chemical uses in waste.  Our

         11  efforts resulted in the USEPA's Toxic Release

         12  Inventory, which is the federal Right- to- Know Law.

         13    It is a database of toxic chemical waste and

         14  releases, and it is available to anyone with a

         15  personal computer.

         16                 This legislation has actually been

         17  credited with reducing, by over 50 percent toxic

         18  chemical waste in the United States.  It has been

         19  very effective.  It is also arguably the only

         20  indicator of environmental performance that we have

         21  that really shows whether environmental performance

         22  is improving industrial facilities.

         23                 In the early 1980s, Inform helped New

         24  Jersey to develop its Worker and Community Right-

         25  to- Know Act.  This is the first state law requiring
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          2  industrial facilities to collect and publicly report

          3  all of the toxic chemical inputs and outputs at

          4  their facilities.  This materials counting data is a

          5  key measure of environmental performance, and of the

          6  chemical risks posed to the community and consumers.

          7    Although, materials accounting data is not

          8  collected in New York, City Council could work with

          9  the State Legislature to develop a program model

         10  after those in New Jersey and Massachusetts.  A bill

         11  currently in the Legislature, A.06085, requires

         12  Materials Accounting Data along with the greatly

         13  strengthen statewide pollution prevention program.

         14                 Also, at New Jersey's request, Inform

         15  is now working with the designing of New Jersey's

         16  web site and their database to make this information

         17  publicly available.  Inform has received the USEPA's

         18  Administrators Award for national leadership in

         19  pollution prevention, and our report expanding the

         20  public's Right- to- Know explains how New Jersey's

         21  expanded toxic chemical reporting program works, and

         22  I provided you all with copies of that.  It is also

         23  available on- line at Inform's web site, which is

         24  www.informinc.org.            Inform lauds City

         25  Council's intention to make information about the
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          2  storage and release of hazardous substances easily

          3  accessible to all City agencies and to the public.

          4  Currently this information is maintained, by our

          5  understanding, by several different agencies in a

          6  variety of formats.  As a result, access to it in

          7  the case of an emergency, is complicated and time

          8  consuming.  Lack of centralization of this

          9  information puts first responders and residents

         10  unnecessarily at risk.  It makes sense to use the

         11  Internet and electronic storage to make this

         12  information available as fast as possible, whenever

         13  it is needed.

         14                 Providing information about past

         15  releases of hazardous materials will help prepare

         16  for and prevent future accidental releases.  And in

         17  times of crisis it is especially crucial for New

         18  Yorkers to know about potential threats from

         19  hazardous chemicals.  Armed with this information,

         20  community leaders can assess the risks from

         21  industrial facilities and begin a meaningful

         22  dialogue with regulators and the facilities

         23  themselves about reducing those risks.  For example,

         24  by finding replacements for hazardous materials, and

         25  by storing less on site.
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          2                 Senate bill 1602, called the Chemical

          3  Security Act, is sponsored by Senators Corzine,

          4  Jeffords, Boxer, and Clinton, and it recommends

          5  exactly this kind of information analysis and

          6  planning for inherent risk reduction.  Right- to-

          7  Know Laws are also effective in reducing pollution.

          8  The federal Right- to- Know Law provides information

          9  on over 23,000 facilities and power plants. It is

         10  credited with reducing toxic emissions by over 50

         11  percent since its implementation.

         12                 And I just feel very strongly that we

         13  cannot let our security concerns, which are,

         14  obviously, incredibly important, comprise our

         15  planning and progress towards long- term

         16  environmental improvement, and we have to balance

         17  those two needs, and I believe that is what your

         18  Committee is trying to do, and I laud you and

         19  appreciate your efforts.

         20                 And finally, I do suggest that if

         21  information is made more widely available that that

         22  be paired with better on- site technical assistance

         23  so that the facilities can, in fact, put together

         24  plans, prepare, and act to reduce the risks that

         25  their storage and use of how this chemical is posed
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          2  to the community.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, I

          5  just would like to make sure that we have all these

          6  bill numbers or whatever.

          7                 MS. BERGER:  I know they are not in

          8  my testimony, I am sorry.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Seeing that

         10  your statement is a little different.

         11                 MS. BERGER:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Your oral

         13  statement is a little different than your written

         14  testimony.

         15                 MS. BERGER:  It is.  I thought I had

         16  three minutes, so I had to cut down my oral

         17  testimony.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, it is quite

         19  all right, it is quite all right.  Sure, sure, but I

         20  just wanted to make sure that you meet with Donna

         21  afterwards and give us any information that you

         22  think is going to help us out, particularly, this

         23  New Jersey program that you make reference to, we

         24  would like to have, you know, I do not mind copying

         25  New Jersey, if it helps us, you know.  And so, hey,
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          2  you know,

          3                 MS. BERGER:  Well, I think it is a

          4  very comprehensive program, and it has been very

          5  effective in New Jersey.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, I just

          7  want to make sure that we have the full benefit of

          8  everything that you had to say. Of course, your

          9  remarks will be included in the record, but it takes

         10  us a while to get that transcript, and I would like

         11  to get us going on this before that.  So make sure

         12  that you talk to Donna and give her all the

         13  information on those bills and this New Jersey

         14  program, so that we can follow up.

         15                 MS. BERGER:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         17  much for your testimony, and please give my best to

         18  Joanna.

         19                 MS. BERGER:  I will, very happily do

         20  that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am sure.

         22  Okay, I ask you to identify yourself, for the

         23  record, Joel, and proceed with your testimony.

         24                 MR. SHUFRO:  My name is Joel Shufro.

         25  I am the Executive Director of the New York
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          2  Committee for Occupational Safety and Health.  You

          3  do not have copies of my testimony, - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is okay.

          5                 MR. SHUFRO: - -  because I learned

          6  about this hearing late last night, and typed the

          7  testimony early this morning, I did not have time to

          8  get it copied, but I will send it in.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MR. SHUFRO:  NYCOSH is a coalition of

         12  200 local unions in the New York Metropolitan area,

         13  and about 400 health, legal and safety

         14  professionals, as well as - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If you could

         16  speak right into the microphone, like I am doing,

         17  like this here.

         18                 MR. SHUFRO:  I am sorry.  Okay, we

         19  are a coalition of 200 local unions in the New York

         20  Metropolitan area, as well as about 400 legal,

         21  medical public health professionals, and rank and

         22  safety file activists.  We have a 23- year history

         23  of providing quality safety and health training and

         24  technical assistance about workplace hazards to

         25  workers, union representatives, community
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          2  organizations, employers and government agencies.

          3  We are dedicated to the right of every worker's

          4  right to a safe and healthful workplace, and are

          5  based on the principle that occupational injuries

          6  and illnesses are preventable.

          7                 I am here today in my capacity as one

          8  of the four representatives of the City Council to

          9  the New York City Hazardous Substance Advisory

         10  Board.  I, along with three other Council

         11  representatives have served in that capacity since

         12  the Board was established many years ago.  And I

         13  commend the Committee for holding this hearing,

         14  probably one of the first hearings that we have had

         15  in which I have a chance to talk about the

         16  implementation of the law.

         17                 The recent explosion on 19th Street

         18  reminds us of the importance of this law.

         19  Nationwide each year, companies report more than

         20  25,000 toxic fires, spills, or explosions to the

         21  National Response Center, a broad, but incomplete

         22  federal record of such mishaps.  At least 1,000 of

         23  these events involve deaths, injuries, or

         24  evacuation.

         25                 New York City's Right- to- Know Law
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          2  is an important piece of legislation which provides

          3  emergency responders and members of the public

          4  information about the storage of toxic substances.

          5  Over the years, the program, staffed by dedicated

          6  and hard- working individuals, has moved forward.

          7                 Increasing numbers of facilities have

          8  come into compliance with the reporting requirements

          9  of the law, although it is still estimated by the

         10  Division's personnel that there still remain large

         11  numbers of facilities that exceed the reporting

         12  threshold and do not report.

         13                 The law has forced employers to

         14  employ competent people to examine the risks of the

         15  processes and chemicals by requiring facilities

         16  which use toxic substances and to file risk

         17  management plans.

         18                 The program has moved forward with

         19  computerization and seems to be on track in the

         20  development of an appropriate database enabling

         21  emergency response personnel to get information

         22  about the storage of toxic substances in a timely

         23  fashion.

         24                 The number of inspectors has

         25  increased, and as has fines.
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          2                 Yet, the program has not achieved the

          3  goals intended by the authors of the legislation.

          4  In its conception, the law was designed to provide

          5  ordinary citizens with information about toxic

          6  threats in our communities, as well as to provide

          7  emergency response personnel with detailed

          8  information, which they could use in responding to

          9  chemical releases, spills, explosions and fires. The

         10  underlying premise of the law is that an informed

         11  and active public would force facilities, which used

         12  toxic substances which threatened the health and

         13  safety of community members to substitute the use of

         14  substances that are less hazardous.  This was re

         15  enforced in the law by requiring employers to

         16  conduct an annual review to determine whether

         17  substances that were less toxic could be substituted

         18  for those that were currently used.

         19                 Unfortunately, today, the law is one

         20  of the City's best kept secrets, even among safety

         21  and health professionals. When the law was

         22  initiated, several staff positions were devoted to

         23  developing outreach materials for community

         24  residents, health and safety professionals and

         25  employers.  The staff conducted educational programs
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          2  for community members and employers about the law's

          3  requirements and assisted employers with filling out

          4  forms. Today, those positions and programs have been

          5  eliminated. Consequently, the agency focuses on

          6  providing information to emergency responders,

          7  important, but a much narrower scope than the

          8  authors of the law intended.

          9                 Second, public accessibility to

         10  information is not encouraged.  We recently had an

         11  intern in our office call the Department to find out

         12  how she could obtain information about facilities in

         13  her neighborhood.  She was told she needed to file a

         14  Freedom of Information Request.  Well, that is not

         15  what the law requires, in fact, just the opposite.

         16  The law was enacted to make access to information

         17  easier, to allow individuals to get information

         18  without going through the formality of filing

         19  Freedom of Information Requests.  In addition, while

         20  the Department has moved forward to computerized

         21  information, access to information by the public is

         22  almost an after thought.  Although, we as

         23  representatives of the City Council have

         24  consistently raised the issue, we are told that the

         25  Department will get to the issue of public access
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          2  later, it is not their priority.

          3                 Third, of equal concern, the section

          4  of the law dealing with risk management plans is not

          5  being enforced. First and foremost, although

          6  additional inspectors have been hired, the

          7  Department has not filled the position of the

          8  individuals who are responsible for reviewing risk

          9  management plans since December of 2000.  This is a

         10  serious problem.  The risk management plans are used

         11  to determine the effectiveness of the employers

         12  safety program.  Risk management plans are the

         13  foundation of prevention, upon which the law is

         14  based.  The lack of staff to review these plans

         15  creates the potential for serious hazards to public

         16  health, making a mockery of the law.

         17                 Equally distressing, given the

         18  concern about terrorism is the inability of the

         19  Division to enforce sections of the law requiring

         20  toxic use reduction.  As you might be aware, Section

         21  41- 11 of the law requires "the consideration of the

         22  use of alternative substances and equipment to

         23  eliminate or reduce the use of extremely hazardous

         24  substances or regulated toxic substances in a

         25  covered process."  The regulations also require that
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          2   "a responsible party shall submit a summary report

          3  demonstrating the consideration of the use of

          4  alternative substances and equipment to verify

          5  compliance with this section."  This section of the

          6  law is an important tool to reduce threats of

          7  exposure to highly toxic substances to workers and

          8  members of the surrounding community.  In light of

          9  the recent events, an even greater worry is the

         10  uncontrolled exposure of toxins as a result of a

         11  terrorist attack.

         12                 As members of the Board, we have

         13  communicated our concerns to the Department and have

         14  received a response that the positions of risk

         15  management reviewers will be filled as quickly as

         16  possible.  Whether it is the City's hiring process

         17  or other factors, the fact that the position has

         18  been vacant for over a year, does not inspire us

         19  with confidence in the Department's resolving this

         20  matter.  Although, we did receive a letter recently

         21  from the Department saying that they were going to

         22  move forward, which we were pleased to receive.

         23                 I believe this law provides important

         24  tools for citizens of New York to ensure their

         25  neighborhoods are safe.  It has helped communities,

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  schools, and workplaces become safer and healthier

          3  at little cost.  In the context of the concern about

          4  terrorism, we believe this law provides valuable

          5  tools to reduce the hazards by requiring facilities

          6  to substitute safer chemicals for a more dangerous

          7  ones.  But the law needs to be enforced

          8  aggressively, and the Department needs to be

          9  provided with adequate resources to do so.

         10                 In a democratic society, we have the

         11  right to know about the toxic threats in our

         12  communities.  The challenge before us is to do

         13  everything we can to prevent terrorist attacks,

         14  while maintaining and open society.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Shufro.  I was wondering if we could impose upon you

         18  to have a photocopy of your statement?

         19                 MR. SHUFRO:  I will.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you think we

         21  can do that?

         22                 MR. SHUFRO:  Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If I could ask

         24  the Sergeant to take a copy of the statement.

         25                 MR. SHUFRO:  I would be happy to go
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          2  back to my office and send it to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, it is fine,

          4  I just, this will be great.  We will make copies,

          5  that way we can, at least, have some copies for

          6  myself and for staff to get, you know, the benefit

          7  of your words of wisdom, which we deeply appreciate,

          8  as you always provide, for us.  Thank you, thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 And the other Joel on the panel, Joel

         11  Kupferman.

         12                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Joel Kupferman from

         13  the New York Environmental Law and Justice Project.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

         15  being here.

         16                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay.  And I think

         17  very familiar with FOIL, lack of information and

         18  information dispersal.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right into the

         20  mic, right into the mic.

         21                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Right into the mic.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right into the

         23  mic.

         24                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay.  The New York

         25  Environmental Law Project has been very involved
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          2  with protecting workers, tenants, residents, and

          3  many people of Lower Manhattan and Greater

          4  Manhattan.  We are involved with the World Trade

          5  Center from Day 1, and I think it is very important

          6  to point out, it was misinformation that was handed

          7  out, has led to many, many people being sick today.

          8                 We went out and we grabbed a sample

          9  from the street, and it was 5 percent asbestos, 90

         10  percent fiberglass, and we announced this to the

         11  press.  The press publicized this, but at the same

         12  time, EPA was telling us that the air was safe.

         13  Okay?  We checked their web site, and their web site

         14  said everything is okay. We foiled, and it took a

         15  while to get information, but the information that

         16  we got from EPA pointed out that there were dioxins

         17  and a whole list of chemicals that were out there.

         18  We put it onto our web site, they could not put it

         19  onto theirs.  The fact that we had the ability to

         20  put it on the web site, basically, alerted the press

         21  and the public of how dangerous that air was, it

         22  still is.

         23                 We were hit, our web site was hit by

         24  the Department of Justice, people in EPA in

         25  Washington, and many, many other government agencies
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          2  and medical institutions.  Just the fact that our

          3  web site alone gets so many hits is a sign that

          4  information is essential.

          5                 We foiled New York State, New York

          6  State's response, we asked for the air monitoring

          7  stations that they cited to all of us that the air

          8  is clean.  They came back with the message that due

          9  to ongoing criminal investigation, we cannot give

         10  you that information.  It took us about a month, a

         11  month and a half.

         12                 I want to point out - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It took you a

         14  month to get air monitoring information?

         15                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  From New York State.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Because the

         17  information was sensitive, or their resources could

         18  not be dedicated to providing you any information?

         19                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Supposedly it was

         20  sensitive.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It was

         22  sensitive.

         23                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Right, their claim.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I thought

         25  they were going to say, like they were too busy
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          2  doing other things to fulfill that request.

          3                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Their claim, but I

          4  just want to point out - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Their claim was

          6  that the information in and of itself of the air

          7  monitoring, and they could not give that to you.

          8                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Right, and these are

          9  public reports. I do not understand how air

         10  monitoring reports could be dangerous, that

         11  knowledge could be dangerous.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I just want to

         13  be clear as to what their statement was?

         14                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  And I will give you

         15  copies of all their responses.

         16                 We foiled the City, the City took

         17  even longer to respond to us.  It was amazing, and

         18  their response is their was information about the

         19  air that we are breathing right now, one of the air

         20  monitoring stations that they reported is down the

         21  hallway by the Mayor's Office, and the report came

         22  back as overload. Overload means that there is so

         23  much dust, that the air monitoring equipment shut

         24  down.  Okay?  It does not mean that there is

         25  asbestos in there, but what it means is that there
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          2  was dust that people were breathing, okay, that is

          3  here.  We just did a test --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is in the

          5  building?

          6                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  There is definitely

          7  dust in this building.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, but I mean,

          9  but the monitoring device was inside this building?

         10                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  It was in this

         11  building.  It was at Mendex's (phonetic) Office,

         12  which I believe at the time she was Mayor Giuliani's

         13    Chief- of- Staff.  That information was not sent

         14  out up until we got it.  We contacted the Head of

         15  Security of this building, and he was really amazed

         16  that he was never told that. This guy that is in

         17  charge of, you know, of the people's safety in this

         18  building.  On the way in, the police officer that

         19  checked my bag, complained about breathing, but she

         20  was not told of what she was breathing.

         21                 What I want to say is that we also

         22  represent firefighters.  We went into fire stations

         23  and we took pictures, and I will present this to the

         24  Committee.  This was taken at 32 South Street, it is

         25  a Sesame Street doll, but covered with dust.  Who
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          2  was here, but about 10 minutes ago had to leave, was

          3  Rudy Sanfilippo, who represents the United

          4  Firefighters Association, who we have been retained

          5  to test the Fire trucks and the Fire Houses.  These

          6  guys are very, very scared that they are asked to go

          7  into a building not knowing what is in there.

          8                 We also work on behalf of the United

          9  Firefighters Association, the volunteer

         10  firefighters, they have the same concerns.  Let me

         11  point out that they were asking these guys to go in

         12  there without this information.  Many of these

         13  chemicals that are so- called dangerous that could

         14  be used by terrorists are a threat to our safety

         15  people and the people living in the area.  So that

         16  is one of the first things we are really concerned

         17  about is our firefighters response.

         18                 We have been contacted and we are

         19  working on behalf of the SBA and the PBA, because

         20  these cops have been exposed --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But to the

         22  extent that you can comment on like the legislation

         23  that we have on the table?

         24                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay, what this has

         25  to do with legislation is, without this information,
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          2  okay, when they respond to something and they need a

          3  source to go get information of what they are

          4  responding to.  But we are letting two, three,

          5  government agencies telling us that the interest of

          6  national security, you cannot see this information.

          7                 So I think what I am saying is that

          8  this decision you have to make is a weighing

          9  decision.  This outside threat, and I think on the

         10  other hand, you have to look at the health and

         11  safety of 700 firefighters that were tested, and

         12  they have come up with upper respiratory illnesses.

         13                 What we asked EPA and the City for

         14  the information of what these guys were going into,

         15  they told us they did not know. When we went to

         16  databases provided by the State, we found out that

         17  there were 38,000 pounds of mercury that was removed

         18  from the World Trade Center in 1998.  So we know

         19  that mercury was one of the concerns that they

         20  should have been alerted to.

         21                 We have been doing testing now

         22  finding mercury.  But if you ask DEP, today

         23  according to their regs, they are not going to tell

         24  us because it poses a national threat.  What I am

         25  really saying is that this information is essential
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          2  for people providing medical care and emergency

          3  responders.

          4                 Also part of the problem is that we

          5  are asking DEP to tell us to trust them.  They have

          6  only issued one asbestos violation since 9/11.  And

          7  the concern there is that, when they were asked to

          8  look at the interiors, you know, to tell us what is

          9  in the interiors, they did not do any investigation

         10  themselves, they went to the landlords.  And the

         11  landlords said, of course, there is nothing there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I take it that

         13  you are supportive of the legislation?

         14                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Yes.  But also I just

         15  want to point out that, I am very supportive of the

         16  legislation, but I am also really concerned that the

         17  Police Inspector is using the old card of waving the

         18  flag in the interest of national security.  And a

         19  lot of my information has come from military

         20  journals, and you know, environmental information

         21  offices at the military.  And according to them,

         22  they have to know what their men are exposed to.

         23                 And also, we are told that there are

         24  so many hazardous chemicals in New York City that

         25  could be terrorist threats, I think it is incumbent
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          2  upon the Environmental Committee to ask, why these

          3  chemicals existing and why we were not informed of

          4  their existence before?  Doesn't that pose some

          5  dilemma to you?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, that has

          7  not escaped my attention.

          8                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay.  And what Joel

          9  pointed out before that one of his staff workers

         10  asked for information.  We foiled the City's

         11  Department of Health a month ago, asking them for

         12  their current air monitoring reports.  And they

         13  responded, it is not in our Division, it is in

         14  another Division.

         15                 We foiled Office of Emergency

         16  Management over the whole pesticide spraying.  They

         17  responded, it is not our Division, it is somewhere

         18  else.  So unless you could put this into one

         19  database as you are proposing, only when you can

         20  grab this information and be delivered in a timely

         21  basis, is it pertinent.

         22                 We are finding now that this

         23  information that is delivered to us, weeks and weeks

         24  after, makes it moot.  It has got to be instant

         25  delivery of information that is important.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          3  much, and I appreciate it.  Now, you did not have a

          4  written statement?

          5                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  I do.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You do, okay.

          7  You know, we would benefit greatly from your

          8  statement, even if you were just to provide one

          9  copy, that would be great.

         10                 And as we have seen, we have to walk

         11  a few more steps before we get to the goal line on

         12  this.  And, I hope I can -

         13                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  But also, I think it

         14  is incumbent upon, I have been to many Committee

         15  hearings.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         17                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  And I think it is

         18  important for you to ask the people that work for

         19  each of these Departments what their views are?  The

         20  fact that the Fire Department was not here, I think

         21  is essential.  Also, the fact that a lot of the

         22  firefighters have retained groups such as the New

         23  York Environmental Law Project, they really are

         24  scared, is really important.

         25                 So what happen is you get a sort of a
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          2  company line- -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We are very

          4  familiar with the concept of the company line, and

          5  those that - -  and, you know, we do the best we can

          6  to bring in all voices, whether it is in an open

          7  forum like this, or through, you know, conversations

          8  with staff.  And, you know, you can rest assure that

          9  what goes on in like the public forum here is, you

         10  know, not the full story.  And so to the extent that

         11  we need help in reaching out to some of these folks

         12  who can bring some important information that we

         13  ought to consider, then hopefully we will be able -

         14   -

         15                 MR. KUPFERMAN:   Also, I think it is

         16  important to point out - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is one of

         18  the things I want to rely on you for.

         19                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Right.  Daily News

         20  did a survey of people in New York, 70 percent of

         21  the people in New York that were surveyed, do not

         22  trust the EPA post- WTC.  And also, a lot of the

         23  workers that I have spoken to, are ready to quit

         24  working for City government, because they are

         25  fearful of their work sites.  They cannot get the
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          2  information at to the safety of their own work site,

          3  and also the fact that they believe that the

          4  government does not give enough information.  I

          5  think it is important for you to be aware of that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is my job

          7  description.

          8                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And so thank

         10  you for re inspiring us, we appreciate that.  And we

         11  hope we can count on you all to walk with us through

         12  the rest of the journey here, until we get something

         13  that we can get passed.

         14                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thanks a lot, I

         16  appreciate very much.  And if we could just have a

         17  copy of that statement, even if it is just one copy,

         18  we will get that, and then that way we will not have

         19  to wait for the transcript.

         20                 Thank you all very much.  I

         21  appreciate your patience.  Thank you.

         22                 Mr. Steven Vitale of Key Span, and

         23  anyone else from Key Span that wishes to join us,

         24  please, feel free to do so.

         25                 Oh, I would just state for the record
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          2  that, you know, we did, there was reference made to

          3  other unions and impacted parties and so on.  All of

          4  the relevant parties were invited to the hearing,

          5  not everyone, of course, can come.  But, you know,

          6  we may hear from them formally, if they respond with

          7  written testimony, or if they do not respond, we

          8  will do our diligent best to kind of reach out to

          9  them and make sure that their thoughts and views

         10  are, you know, heard in the process.  And so we did

         11  have a big witness list of people that were invited,

         12  but, of course, not everybody can make it.  But just

         13  for the record, so people were invited.

         14                 Okay, thank you very much for being

         15  here today. We appreciate your patience, you were

         16  here a long time ago and we are still at it, and

         17  thank you very much for staying with us.

         18                 I would like to ask Donna De Costanzo

         19  to do the oath, and then we can proceed.

         20                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Could you please

         21  raise your right hand?  In the testimony that you

         22  are about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         23  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         24  truth?

         25                 ALL:  I do.
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          2                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          4  much.  You may consider yourselves under oath.  And

          5  Mr. Vitale, if I could ask you to identify yourself,

          6  for the record, identify your associate and proceed

          7  with your testimony, which I hope I have, do I have?

          8    I have go to get my glasses on, all right, I am

          9  all set.

         10                 MR. VITALE:  My name is Steven

         11  Vitale.  I am Vice President and Chief Gas Engineer

         12  of Key Span Energy, as well as a licensed

         13  professional engineer in the States of New York,

         14  Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, and with application

         15  pending in New Hampshire.  I hold a Ph.D in

         16  Mechanical Engineering and Master Degrees in Civil

         17  and Mechanical Engineering.  I have held numerous

         18  operating and engineering positions at Key Span and

         19  its predecessor company Brooklyn Union since 1972.

         20  I appreciate this opportunity to speak to you today

         21  on behalf of Key Span.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

         23  being here.

         24                 MR. VITALE:  Mr. Robert Wilson,

         25  Director of Environmental Operations for Key Span,

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  accompany's me.  He is available to answer any

          3  questions which may arise regarding environmental

          4  emergency response matter.  Mr. Wilson is a chemical

          5  engineer and a Master's level certified hazardous

          6  materials manager.  He is recognized as an industry

          7  expert in gas analysis, instant investigations, and

          8  emergency response field operations. His current

          9  responsibilities include waste management,

         10  environmental emergency response operations,

         11  laboratory and analytical services, and

         12  environmental outreach and training programs.

         13                 Before I get into the written

         14  testimony, I would like to commend Inspector John

         15  Colgan for very nicely articulating many of the, in

         16  fact, everything that he presented is consistent

         17  with Key Span's views on concerns about terrorism

         18  and concerns about letting our infrastructure be

         19  known to those who might want to do harm to the

         20  City.  I want to commend that and support that

         21  testimony.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. VITALE:  For my written

         24  testimony, let me state that Key Span is the largest

         25  distributor of natural gas in the Northeast with 2.5
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          2  million customers and more than 13,000 employees.

          3  Our operations in New York City serve over 1.1

          4  million customers.  We are dedicated to providing

          5  unparalleled service to our customers.  Part of that

          6  unparalleled service is a commitment to providing

          7  safe, reliable gas service in a environmental and

          8  progressive manner.  Key Span is proud of our

          9  environmental performance, and our work with local

         10  and national environmental groups, and regulatory

         11  agencies, to improve the quality of our beaches,

         12  waterways, woodlands, communities, drinking water,

         13  and the air we breathe.  We have worked diligently

         14  to satisfy the requirements of the Department of

         15  Environmental Protection.  We are equally proud of

         16  our active partnerships with New York City Emergency

         17  Services, including the Police Department, Fire

         18  Department and Office of Emergency Management, of

         19  which I will state that I was on the phone with all

         20  three of these at 10:30 last night.  So this is an

         21  ongoing effort.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What time was

         23  that?

         24                 MR. VITALE:  Ten thirty last night.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, 10:30.  You
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          2  call that late, come on, that is not late.

          3                 MR. VITALE:  No.  But I call it an

          4  ongoing day.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          6                 MR. VITALE:  I would like to address

          7   - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

          9  your efforts, I appreciate it.

         10                 MR. VITALE:  Thank you.  I would to

         11  address the proposed amendments to Title 24, Chapter

         12  6, as they relate to our gas delivery system, in two

         13  areas, in particular.

         14                 First, I would like to speak about

         15  the proposed computerization, collection of data

         16  related to notifications, responses and releases of

         17  hazardous substances.

         18                 Second, I would like to speak about

         19  the proposed computerization, computerized

         20  collection of information related to the disposition

         21  of pipelines, valves and controls, including those

         22  on the natural gas pipelines in New York City.  The

         23  security of these resources will be compromised

         24  needlessly under the proposal as written.

         25                 Regarding the collection of data on
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          2  notifications, I believe Key Span is fundamentally

          3  in compliance with the intent of the proposed

          4  administrative changes.  We have a gas emergency

          5  plan in place in cooperation with the Office of

          6  Emergency Management, the New York City Police

          7  Department, the New York City Fire Department, and

          8  the New York City Department of Environmental

          9  Protection.  Furthermore, over 12 months ago, we

         10  entered into a formal memorandum of understanding

         11  with the DEP, specifically addressing issues related

         12  to compliance with Chapter 6 of Title 24 for

         13  releases of natural gas, which may impact the public

         14  safety or the City infrastructure.

         15                 To the extent that this Intro. Merely

         16  computerizes the current information process, we are

         17  ready to work with the Commissioner to develop

         18  mutually acceptable methods.  Key Span's gas

         19  facilities are a key component of New York City's

         20  infrastructure.  These data management methods must

         21  provide for data security, and must take into

         22  account the need for security regarding the

         23  facilities that are involved.

         24                 Data collection for gas facilities:

         25  In Section 24 613(a)(4) and in Section 24- 613(b),
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          2  Intro. 47 includes proposed requirements to report

          3  the location of pipelines, including the location of

          4  valves and controlled devices.  This information

          5  will be entered into a computerized database system

          6  that would make information widely available to

          7  multiple agencies, the Council and the public.

          8                 I must strongly object to this

          9  proposal.  The need for City agencies and/or the

         10  Council to obtain specific information regarding

         11  specific Key Span facilities is already being

         12  handled better by direct communication with Key Span

         13  and the agencies, whether on a routine basis or in

         14  relation to any urgent matter.

         15                 Key Span has gas mains in nearly

         16  every City street in our service territory, with

         17  services leading to a vast majority of the premises.

         18    Emergency responders know this, if they need any

         19  further details, we provide them immediately and

         20  with our most current accurate information.

         21  Providing a snapshot database full of the specifics

         22  of existing valves and control devices on our gas

         23  mains, would be of no practical use to New York City

         24  agencies or departments, and no legitimate use to

         25  the public.  Additionally, there are significant
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          2  portions of our network - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Mr. Vitale.

          4                 MR. VITALE:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Just so you

          6  know, in recent days as I have looked at this

          7  legislation and we have had subsequent discussion

          8  before this hearing, I agree with you, just so you

          9  know.  That probably makes you feel better as you

         10  are delivering your testimony, to know that I am

         11  already on the same page with you with regard to

         12  your views of how it only represents a snapshot in

         13  time, what is the use for it, so on and so forth.

         14  So I am not going there with this legislation any

         15  more.  So even though it is still in the bill right

         16  now, that is, for all intents and purposes, it is,

         17  you know, certain to come out.

         18                 MR. VITALE:  Thank you, that is good

         19  to hear, since I passionately feel strongly about

         20  these issues.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With regard to

         22  the pipelines stuff, I meant.

         23                 MR. VITALE:  Yes, pipelines, control

         24  valves, critical infrastructure, controlling

         25  devices.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

          3                 MR. VITALE:  Laying our a road map

          4  for terrorists is a major concern.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Gone, gone,

          6  gone.

          7                 MR. VITALE:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Done.

          9                 MR. VITALE:  With that in mind I will

         10  move a little bit further down in the presentation

         11  in concern of your time.

         12                 The Fire Department does not operate

         13  our main valves, I am moving down to the bottom of

         14  the page, or our control devices.  Its officers have

         15  often commented that they do not wish to operate our

         16  main valves.  In fact, Fire Department personnel

         17  should not attempt to operate these valves.

         18  Improper use of these devices can have an unintended

         19  or serious consequences.  Only Key Span personnel

         20  trained and qualified by us under USDOT and NYSPSC

         21  code requirements are authorized to operate our

         22  system.

         23                 At most, the Fire Department may shut

         24  the valve to a single meter or service line.  Where

         25  service line valves do not already exist, we install
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          2  them for their use under Local Law 30. We train the

          3  Fire Department in the identification and use of

          4  these valves.  Any Fire Department request for

          5  information regarding gas services is answered

          6  immediately, and any needed field response is

          7  provided as a top priority.

          8                 In conclusion, Key Span is ready to

          9  work with New York City to develop a means to

         10  provide current reports on notifications, et cetera,

         11  in an updated, computerized format, in line with our

         12  existing Memorandum of Understanding.

         13                 On the other hand, we are deeply

         14  troubled by the proposal to collect and disseminate

         15  gas pipeline information. Placing data on these key

         16  components of the New York City energy

         17  infrastructure into an accessible database strikes

         18  me as contrary to the public service and public

         19  safety mandates, which we must both meet.  The

         20  events of last September convinced me that this is

         21  wrong, and this is a wrong way to meet the

         22  legitimate needs of government.  We urge you to

         23  withdraw the provisions, and I am encouraged by your

         24  earlier comments.  Key Span stands ready to work

         25  with our partners in government to meet all
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          2  legitimate obligations. I am sure we can find a way

          3  to do so, which will not risk or compromise the

          4  security of our system and the safety of our public.

          5  I am convinced that we share common goals.

          6                 Let me just state that, also, within

          7  Key Span, we only treat such information on a need

          8  to know basis.  I as Chief Engineer have certain

          9  levels of information, my staff has different

         10  levels, and even amongst the officers within the

         11  Corporation, information is shared only on a need to

         12  know basis when it comes where information could be,

         13  could compromise City security and system security.

         14                 There is already too, too much

         15  information available on the Internet.  As per the

         16  statements of Inspector Colgan, there is a lot that

         17  is at risk here, and I commend your wisdom in

         18  reconsidering some of the thoughts.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         20  much, I appreciate your testimony.  Also,

         21  anticipated my question about how information is

         22  available even within Key Span, and so, because to

         23  me that was going be you know very telling as to how

         24  sensitive this information really is.  And as you

         25  said, it is on a need to know basis, and the scope
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          2  of effort that would be required to keep this

          3  information updated, you know, there is always new

          4  extensions and valves and things, and services being

          5  run to various places, it would be, you know, a

          6  mammoth undertaking, at great cost, and at what

          7  benefit and at what potential, you know, risk to

          8  public security.

          9                 So, you know, thank you for giving us

         10  your views on this.  And as you say, we also stand

         11  ready to work with you on, you know, working with

         12  our responders, you know, who fight fires and do all

         13  that.  And DEP and the Fire Department seem quite

         14  satisfied with the level of Key Span cooperation,

         15  and that is a good thing, something that I, you

         16  know, commend you for and thank you for that. As we

         17  go forward on this legislation, you will be in the

         18  loop so you will know what we are doing, and we

         19  welcome your continued participation as proceed with

         20  whatever it is we ultimately do here. And thanks for

         21  taking the time to be with us, I appreciate it very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. VITALE:  Thank, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I just want to

         25  make sure, you have the contact information and
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          2  everything?  Okay, I just wanted to make sure that

          3  the Counsel to the Committee had your phone numbers

          4  and everything for access, should we need to follow-

          5  up with you afterwards, and she does, so we are

          6  good.  Thank you very much, I appreciate your

          7  patience.

          8                 MR. VITALE:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Is there anyone

         10  else that wishes to be heard?  No, okay.  Thank you

         11  all very much for being here.  We will continue at

         12  some point as the saga of Intro. 47 or 47- A

         13  continues, and I thank you all very much.  Hearing

         14  is adjourned.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)
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